Ot Praivle

City Hall: 317 College St, Grand Prairie, Texas

MEETING AGENDA
Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals
September 16, 2019
BRIEFING: 6:30 P.M.

The staff will brief the board and preview the cases on tonight’s agenda. Board members will
have the opportunity to ask questions that may facilitate the meeting and the presentation of the
cases. No action will be taken during the briefing.

CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 P.M.

The Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals is appointed by the City Council to consider
variances, exceptions and appeals as prescribed by the City of Grand Prairie’s Unified Development
Code. In accordance with Section 211.009 of the Local Government Code of the State of Texas and
Article 1 of the Unified Development Code of the City of Grand Prairie, the concurring vote of
seven members of the Board is necessary to decide in favor of an applicant on any matter on which
the Board has jurisdiction. Members of the public may address the Board on items listed on the
agenda under Public Hearing Items.

INVOCATION:
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
PUBLIC HEARING:

1. CASE NUMBER BA190903 (Council District 6).

1. Requesting a special exception for a 20x20 (400 sqft) rear yard carport.

2. Requesting a 12 ' foot rear yard setback variance from the required 20 feet, to
allow for a carport 7 ' feet from the rear property line.

3. Requesting a 4 foot side yard setback variance from the required 5 feet, to allow for
a carport 1 foot from the side property line.

Located at 4418 Laredo Dr legally described as Lot 33, Block 34, Westchester 4

Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “PD-172” Planned

Development 172 District.

2. CASE NUMBER BA190905 (Council District 3). Requesting a 6 foot side yard setback
variance from the required 15 feet, to allow for a residential dwelling 9 feet from the side
property line, located at 1501 Lakeview Drive, legally described as Lot 1, Mountain
Lakeview 3, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “SF-4” Single-Family-
Four Residential District.




Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals Agenda September 16, 2019

3. CASE NUMBER BA190906 (Council District 3). —Requesting a special exception for a
26x31 (806 sqft) carport, located at 1534 Avenue E, legally described as Lot 18R, Block 3,
Lake Crest 2 Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned “SF-4" Single-
Family- Four Residential District.

4. CASE NUMBER BA190907 (Council District 6). Requesting a special exception for a

4:12 roof pitch from the required 6:12 roof pitch, located at 1235 Preserve Boulevard,
legally described as Lot 2541, Block P, Lake Ridge, Section 20 Addition, City of Grand
Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned “PD-258” Planned Development 258 District.

6. CASE NUMBER BA190910 (Council District 3).
1. Requesting a 1 foot building setback from the required 6 feet to allow for a detached
garage 5 feet from an accessory structure
2. A special exception from the 100% masonry material requirement, to allow for
hardy board material.
Located at 706 E Springdale, legally described as Lot 5, Block 4, Lake Park Village 1
Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “SF-3" Single-Family- Three
Residential District.

7. CASE NUMBER BA190911 (Council District 6). — Requesting a 35 foot height variance
from the 25 foot height limitation, to allow for a 60 foot multi-tenant pylon sign. Located at
4126 S Carrier Parkway, legally described as Lot 2, Block 5. Westchester Commercial
Addition City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “PD-173" Planned
Development 173 District.

CITIZENS COMMENT:
BOA RULES:

ADJOURNMENT:

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter 6 of the Texas Government Code, V.T.C.A., the
Zoning Board of Adjustment and Appeals agenda was prepared on the 13th day of September
2019 at 5:00 p.m.

Posted By: Nyliah Acosta
The City Hall is wheelchair accessible. If you plan to attend this public meeting and you have a

disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8257 at least 24 hours in advance.
Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs



ol " PRaikle




and BA190903
M@ 4418 Laredo Dr
Y5 3 % 4 & Special Exception/Variance —

: Rear Yard Carport/Setbacks

Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: September 16, 2019

Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Sacramento Duran
SUMMARY

1. Requesting a special exception for a 20x20 (400 sqft) rear yard carport.
2. Requesting a 12 % foot rear yard setback variance from the required 20 feet, to allow for a carport 7

% feet from the rear property line.
3. Requesting a 4 foot side yard setback variance from the required 5 feet, to allow for a carport 1 foot

from the side property line.
Located at 4418 Laredo Dr legally described as Lot 33, Block 34, Westchester 4 Addition, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “PD-172" Planned Development 172 District (Council District 6).

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting approval of a rear yard carport accessible from the alley. A single-family dwelling
currently sits on the property and the owner is proposing to build a 20x20x10’ tall (400 square foot) carport.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure

that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram September 6™ and September 15",
Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on September 6", 2019.

68 notices were sent, 0 were returned in favor, 0 opposed, and there was no response from Westchester
Homeowners Association.

FINDINGS

As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the
following findings are met:

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE I of 3



Such variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of
adjacent property in the same district.

Staff Evaluation: Approving such special exception and variance will not substantially or
permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent property in the same district.

Such variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the special exception and variance will not adversely gffect the
health, safety or general welfare of the public.

Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or
exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for
the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed special exception, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a
use other than those already allowed in “PD-172" Planned Development- 172 District.

Such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: The granting of this special exception will allow the homeowner to protect their
vehicle from inclement weather. Staff suggests that the exception will not harm the spirit and
purpose of this ordinance.

Such variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variance is sought.

Staff Evaluation: Staff observed one other rear yard carport less than 500 feet from the subject
property at 709 Sierra Ct (built without permits). The homes are rear entry garages accessible from
alley, and due to the 113 lot depth and 20 foot rear yard setback, it would be difficult for the
majority of the properties to accommodate a carport without encroaching into the setback.

Such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such special exception will not substantially weaken the general
purpose of the underlying zoning district

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to
unigue circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,
and the unigue circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property
is located.

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 2 of 3



Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the property owner has a hardship that is a unique circumstance of
the property due to the property being within a PD that specifies a 20 foot rear yard setback. All
other single-family zoning districts only require a 5 foot rear yard setback for carports.

H. The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the hardship is not self-created.

RECOMIMENDATION

Staff recommends the case be tabled so the applicant can submit a revised site plan for the special
exception and variance in BA190903 bhased on the following findings of fact:

If the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

Any construction or building allowed by this special exception must conform to the requirements set
forth by the Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the Grand Prairie
Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory requirements
administered and/or enforced by the state and federal government. If a building permit has not been
applied for or issued within a ninety (90) day period or as the Board may specifically grant, the special
exceptions shall be deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

== City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 3 of 3



S

|

S

442

o
S»

L
o

[ak: Y9

Tme! 11 08 AN




—

/f» i
o L
TEY LTI

EASEMENT
(per plat)

VBLHLDERG LiWE

(per plat.)

J‘“ e N kf' i

=
e

.
2

3,

Tk o 2"
__..208
T" g
it LAl FDP

3 A6 LAREDOD
_; DRIVE  §

200 BLELE e p SR
Cper P ) |
172. 2':1' TO o 'f! rstdénce
CHIPPEWA LANE A2 AERIAL BASEAZNT
- /s (per plat)

(per PIAt)  poung 1720
irenired| I

TTHOOD e

| j’ found /20
~=_3ten rod

i
Cound 172"
“jren 1ot

(so' RO.W.)

NOTES:
BEARINGﬁ ARE BASED ON PLAT.

= CONTROLLING MONWFMEN
TI—IIS SURVEY 1S NOT AFFECTED BY THE FOLLOWING:

(10d)-EABSEMENT, VOL. 86222, PG, 1714, R.P.R.D.C.T.
THIS SURVEY IS VALID ONLY N!TH QRIGHN‘AL SIGNATURE IN BLACK INK.

%S I8 T¢ DECLARE that on this date a survey was made on the pround, under lion and supervision of h
| the property located at 4418 1 0 DRIVE, and Being Lot 83, in Bleck 34 of WESTCE R PHASE IV, INSTALLMENT
I, an Addition to the City of Cranid Prairie, Dallan County, Tezas, according to the mep thereof recordsd in Volume

G
89018, Page 1812 of the Map Reeords of Dallag County, Tewss.

SCALE lNFEEr

There ere no visible cmﬂr‘ts or protrusions, except &g showa.

The gubject property dees not appear to He withis t’he ﬁmzts of a 100-year flood hazavd zone eccording to the
map publighed by the Fed gency L - , and has a Zone "X Ratiag as shown by Map No.

ABMaoARAGE § 2 Adbad AR L Me seeRSite dose ar dbEs Bet e within a 00— wasy




R BA190905
m& 1501 Lakeview Drive
L Variance — Side Yard Setback
I E X A S

Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: September 16, 2019
Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner: Jose Ibarra
SUMMARY

Requesting a 6 foot side yard setback variance from the required 15 feet, to allow for a residential dwelling
9 feet from the side property line, located at 1501 Lakeview Drive, legally described as Lot 1, Mountain
Lakeview 3, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “SF-4” Single-Family- Four Residential District
(Council District 3).

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting approval to reduce the side yard setback. The lot is currently vacant and the
property owner is seeking a variance to reduce the minimum side yard setback by 6 feet to construct a
single-family dwelling on the lot. It should be noted that the lot is a nonconforming platted lot, and does not
meet the minimum lot width and lot depth; because of the smaller lot size the applicant has less room to
accommodate the side setback while meeting the minimum living area requirement.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the
commencement of the construction. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will

ensure that the materials and construction complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram September 6™ and September 15",
Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie outgoing mail on September 6™ 2019.

49 notices were sent to property owner, 0 were returned in favor, and 0 in opposition, and there is no
homeowners association.

FINDINGS

As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the
following findings are met:

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 1 of 3



Such variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of
adjacent property in the same district.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed variances, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a use
other than those already allowed in the “SF-4” Single-Family Four Residential District. Such variances
will allow the applicant to construct a single-family dwelling, which is consistent in the surrounding
areq.

Such variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or
general welfare of the public.

Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or
exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for
the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed variance, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a use other
than those already allowed in the “SF-4” Single-Family Four Residential District.

Such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: The granting of this variance will allow the homeowner to construct a single-family
dwelling, which is consisted with the adjacent uses. Staff suggests that the variances are in harmony
with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Such variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variances are sought.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed use will not alter the character of the surrounding area.

Such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

Staff Evaluation: The surrounding single-family dwellings will not be injured by granting the
variance, because reducing the minimum side yard setback will not create incompatible
development, nor will it detract from the character of the community. The character of the
surrounding neighborhood will not be altered and the proposed development will be cohesive with
the existing pattern of the immediate neighborhood.

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to
unique circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,
and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property

City of Grand Prairie
PAGE 2 of 3



is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the property owner has a hardship that is a unique circumstance of
the property, because the property was platted in 1957, and does not meet the minimum

dimensional requirements
H. The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the hardship is not self-created and there is a need to create infill
housing.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends APPROVAL of the requested variance in BA190905 based on the following findings of
fact:

1. The request does not negatively impact surrounding property owners and;
2. The single-family structure must conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified

Development Code.

If the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the conditions listed below:

Any construction or building allowed by this variance or special exception must conform to the
requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the
Grand Prairie Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory
requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and federal government. If a building permit has
not been applied for or issued within nienty (90) day period, or as the Board may specifically grant, the
special exception shall be deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 3 of 3



#1

w
faaan
0 ‘el

i

14067 4

17
é.
18l E o & i N
gl s 5
Granada Av R
— ]
24178 _]1418 I

{AETTEC.  |REEEEM

¥

% ;ja‘

2442
T

Se 14th St
Harrison S¢

This data has been compled by the City of Grand

Prairie TGS depariment. Varous effickl and

imoffcial sources were usedto gather this

Inbrmstion, Every effort was mada Lo ensure A

e accuracy of this data, hewever, no guerantes
is given orimplad as o the accuracy of said data, IR Pa rCEIS




| 50| lakeview dr.
n&9 05' 29" e 53.29

HLYON

el

. Th

-
____-Qﬂ_m*

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

]

2

3

- K@> k%
Yo L2 “6’ | | (?—3 1
§8 Rof : 2
;8 oio N |
B — 1=3 l |
2R 3 Loy
S | S
°R =2 ! .
=h 1 I
7Ys) QQ
8% | s [(rxé
. <
I~ |
g o |
3 g g
X |§ 1 5
|'_—: [}
I} I O
(| N e e
g g8 i
RN tdleﬁhone} . Q — o
: | elec’gnc . ‘ I
L8 1 i 1
’ N méte?|
= 20%20' South n®9 O5' 29" e 53.29
- Western Bell
% Telephone Co.
b e | 1 @OOFVRIGHTI(H!,ALL RIGHTS REGERVED,
Z0ugy L i}
®|hgn-—00
oL g 305 o ? IBARRA NEW RESIDENCE PERMIT A
: aTas 78 | 505 Lakeview Dr. . i T
— - 83 = Grand Prairie, Texas NEW m%%wm.m
3] RESIDENCE ETEEICIE ML 1 pr e




ofand BA190906
’?we/ 1534 Avenue E

Special Exception — Carport Size

Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: September 16, 2019
Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Dagberto Graciano
SUMMARY

Requesting a special exception for a 26x31 (806 sqft) carport, located at 1534 Avenue E, legally described as
Lot 18R, Block 3, Lake Crest 2 Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned “SF-4” Single-
Family- Four Residential District {Council District 3).

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting approval of an oversized carport. A single-family dwelling currently sits on the
property and the owner is proposing to build a 26x31x9 foot (806 square foot) carport.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure

that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram September 6" and September 15™.
Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie outgoing mail on September 6™, 2019.
46 notices were sent, 0 were returned in favor, 0 opposed and there is no neighborhood association.
FINDINGS

As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the

following findings are met:

A. Such variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of
adjacent property in the same district.

Staff Evaluation: Approving such exception will not substantially or permanently injure the
appropriate use of adjacent property in the same district.

=== City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 1 of 3



B. Such variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or
general welfare of the public.

C. Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or
exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for
the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed exception, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a use
other than those already allowed in “SF-4” Single-Family Four Residential District.

D. Such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the exception will not harm the spirit and purpose of this
ordinance.

E. Such variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variance is sought.

Staff Evaluation: Approving the exception will not drastically alter the essential character of the
district in which the subject property is located. In addition, staff noted that there is one other
oversized carport built without permits, located at 1617 avenue E.

F. Such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such exception will not substantially weaken the general
purpose of the underlying zoning district

G. The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to
unique circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,

and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property

is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff cannot find that the property owner has a hardship that is a unique
circumstance of the property.

H. The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.
Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the hardship is self-created.

RECOMMENDATION

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 2 of 3



Staff recommends Denial with an alternate recommendation to dress the carport with similar material to
the house, or comply with the maximum 500 sqft size limitation of the requested special exception in
BA190906 based on the following findings of fact:

1. Anoversized metal carport is not consistent with the character of the surrounding area.
If the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

Any construction or building allowed by this special exception must conform to the requirements set
forth by the Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the Grand Prairie
Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory requirements
administered and/or enforced by the state and federal government. If a building permit has not been
applied for or issued within a ninety (90) day period or as the Board may specifically grant, the special
exceptions shall be deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 3 of 3



ULAR) s

1% 000, JURPY (¥ ‘ L.'i;gﬁiﬁfm_-

A
15108

sy
e L

Fs i
5377

{1 709 ) Wazie. v "fazas

BA190906 1534 Avenue E

Parcels

[t
wpiw o) ol o b |fe e my of el dile,

<l hx b e gt By fhw Ty oF Chard g Md
Fimim FIGHE degoiimen Yoo ofed :
endiool ool vaie e (e ol - lacd)
neimion Evmy Wil v rode fe eroain i e‘/
I mxuincy O Ihol dals, b, ro -
' - "




A o iy i

e
i

£

f

" ....,.I.,r\.ném.!w
]
4
}
'
i

o~




oand BA190907
’PW@, 1235 Preserve Boulevard

Variance — Roof Pitch

Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: September 16, 2019
Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Wissam Katbeh
SUMMARY

Requesting a special exception for a 4:12 roof pitch from the required 6:12 roof pitch, located at 1235
Preserve Boulevard, legally described as Lot 2541, Block P, Lak Ridge, Section 20 Addition, City of Grand
Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned “PD-258” Planned Development 258 District (Council District 6).

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting approval of minimized roof pitch. The lot is currently vacant. Carports are very
characteristic in this neighborhood and it is not uncommon for the carport to extend across the width of the
house as a dual porch and carport cover.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final

inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure
that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram September 6™ and September 15"
Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on September 6™, 2019.
19 notices were sent, 0 were returned in favor, 0 opposed, and there is no neighborhood association.
FINDINGS

As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the

following findings are met:

A. Such variance or exception will not substantially or perménently injure the appropriate use of
adjacent property in the same district.

Staff Evaluation: Approving such variance will not substantially or permanently injure the

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 1 of 3



appropriate use of adjacent property in the same district.

B. Such variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or
general welfare of the public.

C. Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or

exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for
the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed exception, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a use
other than those already allowed in “PD-258" Planned Development 258 District.

D. Such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the exception will not harm the spirit and purpose of this
ordinance.

E. Such variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variance is sought.

Staff Evaluation: Approving the variance will continue to promote the unique character of the
neighborhood, which consists of a variation of different architectural styles.

F. Such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such exception will not substantially weaken the general
purpose of the underlying zoning district

G. The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to
unigue circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,
and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property
is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff cannot find that the property owner has a hardship that is a unique
circumstance of the property.

H. The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.
Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the hardship is self-created.

RECOMMENDATION

== City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 2 of 3



Staff recommends Approval of the requested variance in BA190907 based on the following findings of fact:

1. The reduced roof pitch will decrease the height and visual impact of the home while maintaining

aesthetics;and
2. The minimized roof pitch has no impact on the surrounding area.

If the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

Any construction or building allowed by this special exception must conform to the requirements set
forth by the Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the Grand Prairie
Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory requirements
administered and/or enforced by the state and federal government. If a building permit has not been
applied for or issued within a ninety (90) day period or as the Board may specifically grant, the special
exceptions shall be deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 3 of 3



ra chix hxx bwen compded by ke Ty o
Pixim FIGH degoiman e oo e
endfiool oo o [0 pfihem

Vi reed i o KAy a3 rrowds fa
@ il ey o o8 dal s, hrdem, ro gie il
#lhen b g b e Al wy of e chali,




Tinizesa
Cwdha Tersn

o
S ——
—
o senem
B
=
3 g
(€]
tn .
£it s
3 85% 2
— 53E
| 4 wrnem Z 32" E
Ssrf %
OddE i
3
&
=
=
=
=
Mamwd noow - —_ - - n
South Elevation —
T

LOT 2541 LAKE RIDGE, SECTION 20
1235 Preserve Boulevard  Grand Pratle, TX 75050

bata 5

A2.1

Jurunry 31,3218

@West Elevation




nraa yeam
T ey

T S

@Nnnh Elevation

Trere

4 sussonea_

OEast Elevation

T Ta

21425420 Ve

LOT 2541 LAKE RIDGE, SECTION 20
1235 Preserve Boulevard  Grand Prarie, TX 75050

ExTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

All

dariary M, 389




BA190910

706 E Springdale
Variance —Detached Garage
Material & Setback

Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: September 16, 2019
Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Arnulfo Moreno
SUMMARY

1. Requesting a 1 foot internal building setback from the required 6 feet to allow for a detached garage 5

feet from an accessory structure
2. Aspecial exception from the 100% masonry material requirement, to allow for hardy board material.
Located at 706 E Springdale, legally described as Lot 5, Block 4, Lake Park Village 1 Addition, City of Grand Prairie,
Dallas County, Texas, zoned “SF-3” Single-Family Three Residential (Council District 3).

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting approval of material, and an internal setback between structures for a detached
garage. A single-family dwelling currently sits on the property and the detached garage is existing.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure

that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram September 6™ and September 15™,
Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on September 6, 2019.
79 notices were sent, 0 were returned in favor, 0 opposed and there is no homeowners association.
FINDINGS

As authorized in Section 1.11.7.4 of the UDC, the ZBA may grant variances and exceptions provided the

following findings are met:

A, Such variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 1 of 3



adjacent property in the same district.

Staff Evaluation: Approving such variance will not potentially injure the appropriate use of adjacent
property in the same district.

Such variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of the
public.

Staff Evaluation: Staff suggests that the variance will not adversely affect the health, safety or
general welfare of the public. It should be noted that this case was brought forth by Code
Enforcement, due to complaints of a neighbor stating the garage was being used for auto repair.
This case was heard at the August 19" meeting, and denied. The applicant will be reconfiguring the
structure to meet the setbacks and maximum 750 sf size limitation.

Such variance or exception will not be contrary to the public interest; and such variance or
exception will not authorize the aperation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized for
the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

Staff Evaluation: The proposed variance, if approved, will not authorize the operation of a use other
than those already allowed in “SF-3” Single-Family Three Residential District.

Such variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of this ordinance.

Staff Evaluation: The granting of this variance will allow the applicant to make changes to the
existing corrugated metal detached garage and be in compliance with the setbacks and size. The
applicant is proposing to remove the corrugated metal and put up hardy board walls. The Unified
development code requires 100% masonry material, however the improvement would upgrade the
aesthetic of the structure and the existing size would be reduced.

Such variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located
the property for which the variance is sought.

Staff Evaluation: Approving the variance will not drastically alter the essential character of the
district in which the subject property is located. The structure is located in the rear yard behind a
fence, and will meet height and size requirements.

Such variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning
regulations established for the district in which the property is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff believes that such variance will not weaken the general purpose of the
underlying zoning districts regulations. The purpose of the size, setback and material requirements
are to create uniformity, promote compatibility of uses, and overall safety and welfare of the public.
The applicant is working towards compliance, and staff feels that the variance for materials is a
reasonable request.

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 2 of 3



unique circumstances existing on the property, including but not limited to the area, shape or slope,
and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property and are not merely
financial, and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the district in which the property

is located.

Staff Evaluation: Staff cannot find that the property owner has a hardship that is a unique
circumstance of the property.

H. The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.
Staff Evaluation: Staff finds that the hardship is self-created.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Approval of BA190910 is based on the following findings of fact:

1. This case was previously heard at the Zoning Board of Adjustments August 19" meeting, where
staff recommended the applicant meet the dimensional requirements and use materials similar to
the house. The applicants request meets staff's previous recommendation.

If the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

Any construction or building allowed by this variance must conform to the requirements set forth by the
Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code, the Grand Prairie Municipal Code of
Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other applicable regulatory requirements administered
and/or enforced by the state and federal government. If a building permit has not been applied for or
issued within a ninety (90) day period or as the Board may specifically grant, the special exceptions shall
be deemed waived; and all rights there under terminated.

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 3 of 3



2628 |5
g0

2632

z _I" v
y2634 | 63

Lasalas D
RN e

(S Beit Li0:Rd

Santa Rits Dr

BA190910 706 E Sprlngdale Dr . Date 472019 Time: 4:2100PM

wioflickd sources were used to gather this
nhrmalm Evay dbn vas madulaﬂ'z:un

[his data has baen compled by the City of Grand
Praire M/AES deparknent. Various official and
u| d;‘!a

rocy of this data, however,
isghen orinp[ed ashihe accwacy

" Site Plans

TE XA




S

=i




o and BA190911
’?&d}%@ 4126 S Carrier Parkway

Variance — Pylon Sign

Zoning Board of Adjustments & Appeals: September 16, 2019
Case Manager: Nyliah Acosta
Owner/Applicant: Shops at Westchester, LLC
SUMMARY

Requesting a 35 foot height variance from the 25 foot height limitation, to allow for a 60 foot multi-tenant
pylon sign. Located at 4126 S Carrier Parkway, legally described as Lot 2, Block 5. Westchester Commercial
Addition City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned “PD-173” Planned Development 173 District
(District 6).

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting approval for a variance to allow for a 60 foot tall pylon sign. Per Article 9 Sign
Standards of the Unified Development Code (UDC), pylon signs are prohibited, and the height limitation is
25 feet. The proposed new pole will be a 22'x60" with two tenant 12'x16’ signs. In addition, the applicant is
seeking a 35 foot height variance. The surrounding area impacted by the sign is largely retail, commercial,
and restaurant uses. Directly across Carrier from the proposed location of the requested sign at 4125 S
Carrier Parkway is a 60 foot three sided pylon sign that was approved in 2017. The sign was also granted a
variance to exceed the allowable square footage for a multi-tenant sign. Adding another prohibited pylon
sign that exceeds the height limitation is an oversaturation due to the close proximity of the existing 60 foot
three sided multi-tenant pylon sign approximately 150 feet away. The request is not within the spirit or
intent of the sign code to provide uniformity along the edges of arterials without oversaturating and
cluttering the right of way with signs.

Subject to approval of this application, an approved building permit will be required prior to the final
inspection of the structure. As part of the building permit review process, Building Inspections will ensure

that the addition complies with all regulations.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

Legal notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram September 6th and September
15th.

Notices to property owners were placed in the City of Grand Prairie out-going-mail on September 5, 2019.

City of Grand Prairie

i

PAGE I of 2



15 notices were sent, O were returned in favor, 0 opposed and there is no homeowners association.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Denial of the requested variance in BA190911 based on the following findings of fact:

1. The grade difference between the site and 1-20 may warrant a taller sign, but 550 sqft is 50% larger
than the allowed size, and pylon/pole signs do not fit the character of the area at that height and
size; and

2. Other signs are along I-20 frontage road, south of Westchase Dr signs are around 20 —25 feet in
height.

If the board chooses to grant the applicants request, he/she must abide to the following below:

1. Any construction or building allowed by this special exception and variance must conform to the
requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code, the 2015 International Building Code,
the Grand Prairie Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted fire codes and with other
applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and federal
government. If a building permit has not been applied for or issued within a ninety (90) day
period or as the Board may specifically grant, the special exception and variance shall be deemed
waived; and all rights there under terminated.

City of Grand Prairie

PAGE 2 of 2



———

BA1 90911 4126 S Carrler Pkwy Date: 9182019 Time: 11:17:42 AM

unoffcial sowces wete usedto gether this
inbbrmation. Every efort n:s mam to ensure

fie accuracy of ths deta, Pa rCElS

isgiven orimpled as blhu accuracy d sed data | T E X A S

s data has been compled by the City of Grand
Prairie T/GS deparment. Varous official and




== SHOPS AT WESTCOHESTER ———

D/F TENANT SIGN: SCALE: 1/8"=1"-0"
400 SQ.FT.

MANUFACTURE & INSTALL (1) NEW D/F SHOPS
AT WESTCHESTER TENANT SIGN AS SHOWN.

~ TENANT CABINET, TRIM & DIVIDERS CONSTRUCTED
OF ALUMINUM AND PAINTED DARK BRONZE.
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED w/ WHITE LED LIGHTING,

- TENANT FACES TO BE WHITE ACRYLIC w/ VARIOUS
TENANT GRAPHICS APPLIED TO SURFACE.

- POLE COVERS TO BE CONSTRUCTED OF ALUMINUM
w/ TEX-COTE FINISH AND PAINTED RUST BROWN
TENANT TO MATCH SHOPPING CENTER.

- CAP, REVEAL AND BASE OF POLE COVERS TO BE
CONSTRUCTED OF ALUMINUM w/ TEX-COTE FINISH
AND PAINTED LIGHT BEIGE TO MATCH SHOPPING
CENTER.

LISTED

- ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS -

(1) 120 VOLT /20 AMP CIRCUIT
SIGN LOAD: 10 AMPS

221-6"

\oT Design #:8903-12 Date:7-26-19 | Company: SHOPS AT WESTCHESTER Rev:1
' o : VLT ~) GGl =) |Art:mimpavis  Sales: Rick ROBERTSON | Address: 4126 S. CARRIER PARKWAY
F N C O = PO R AT E D File Name: SHOPS AT WESTCHESTER City: GRAND PRAIRIE State: TEXAS Zip: 75052

5105 E. CALIFORNIA PIWY. FT. WORTH TX. 76119 (817) 834-1123  FAX: [B17) 595-3885 Customer

ILET US HELP BUILD YOUR IMAGE RLoRs




_qv.ﬂdu.__ =] WTuY IMITTER TESD TRLEL

e A o Lansd

@ Tl amAre




NOLLYI0T NDIS - Nv'id LIS TAD

~

T -

¥ R 1T

TFE O A SMerTd TRl
.Eﬁm. TAXTLYPD TR0
CINMOAE TWHNCLYD TELOL

TIET TMCTNE ETORD DL

ELIS ., ITEIHYy

A_v,-lu.,\lll.....lan = :

[
-t i
o IS

ﬁ..&uﬂ:. 7.
EIY hmAeE

gt fa - Sl
y tinmmeeeg Bty

AT TG e ez e
¢
Amaat 4 EpT] 0L AT

SELON TYNINTD

\v\\
\\.\
- V/\:.r e etz Hadwl
r - - _ e |

4l Kuw,\m.\ y,/




Ol Praikle

City Hall: 317 College St, Grand Prairie, Texas

MEETING AGENDA
Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals

August 19th, 2019

BRIEFING: 6:30 P.M.

The staff will brief the board and preview the cases on tonight’s agenda. Board members will have the opportunity
to ask questions that may facilitate the meeting and the presentation of the cases. No action will be taken during the

briefing.

CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 P.M.

The Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals is appointed by the City Council to consider variances, exceptions
and appeals as prescribed by the City of Grand Prairie’s Unified Development Code. In accordance with Section 211.009 of
the Local Government Code of the State of Texas and Article 1 of the Unified Development Code of the City of Grand
Prairie, the concurring vote of seven members of the Board is necessary to decide in favor of an applicant on any matter on
which the Board has jurisdiction. Members of the public may address the Board on items listed on the agenda under

Public Hearing Items.

Board Members In Attendance:

Barry Sandacz, Chairperson _X , Clayton Hutchins _ X ,
Heather Mazac __, Stacy White _X
Debbie Hubacek _ X , Tracy Owens _X , Timothy Ibidapo X ,

Melinda Rodgers __ X .

INVOCATION: Clayton Hutchins led Invocation

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Traey Owens motioned to approve last month’s minutes

Heather Mazac seconded the motion

8 yays _0 mnays



PUBLIC HEARING:

1. CASE NUMBER BA190813 (Council District 1), —Requesting a 300 square foot variance from the 50

sq ft maximum to allow for 350 square feet LED video screen p a building with non- static images,
located at 2625 W Pioneer Pkwy , legally described Lot 2, Sam’s Properties Addition, City of Grand
Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas zoned “LI” Light Industrial District

Applicant / Spokesperson: Matthew Loh
Address: _ 2625 W Pioneer Pkwy
Grand Prairie, TX 75052

Applicant / Spokesperson: Cole Barnes — Prism LED Company
Address: 120 Turtle Creek
Dallas, TX 75207

Any comments from Spokesman:
The applicant wants to create a unique location with outdoor and cultural events. The contractor added that there will be

an automatic dimming sensor

Any questions from Board:
Timothy Ibidapo asked if there is any risk of radiation to people close by. The contractor stated no that it has been
certified

The following persons spoke in favor of the application:

The following persons noted their support for the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in favor of the case:
N/A

The following persons noted their opposition to the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in opposition to the case:
N/A

The applicant did or did not speak in rebuttal.
The public hearing was closed.

After consideration of the evidence, the Board discussed the evidence and the documentation on the record.

The Board makes the following findings, indicated by a check or x in the blank next to the finding:

X Proper notification was done in accordance with the statutes and ordinances.

The decision of the City building or administrative official to deny the permit or construction was in etror, and
the permit should be granted.

A variance, if granted, is not contrary to the public interest, and, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement
of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship, and the granting of the variance would be in the spirit of the



ordinances and substantial justice would be done.

X The variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent property
in the same district.

X _ The variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare of the public.

X The variance or exception will not be contrary to public interest.

X The variance or exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized
for the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

X The variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of the Unified Development Code and
all other ordinances of the City.

X The variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located the property for
which the variance is sought,

X The variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning regulations
established for the district in which the property is located;

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to unique
circumstances existing on the property, including, but not limited to, area, shape or slope, and the unique circumstances
were not created by the owner of the property, and are not merely financial, and are not due to or the result of general
conditions in the district in which the property is located.

The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Any additional findings:

Motion to close to the public hearing by Tracy Owens
2" the Motion by Timothy Ibidapo

Motion was Approved and Public Hearing was closed

Motion to Approve Case by Tracy Owens
2" the Motion Timothy Ibidapo

Motion was Approved/Denied 8 yaysto 0 Nays
Members that objected N/A

Any conditions:



N/A

2. CASE NUMBER BA190803 (Council District 1). —Requesting a 150 square foot variance from the 450

square foot area limitation, to allow for a 600 square foot accessory structure, located at 209 Wright Blvd,
legally described as Lot 34, Whittle Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas zoned “SF-3”
Single-Family Three Residential District.

Applicant / Spokesperson: Isaias Contreras
Address: _ 209 Wright Blvd
Grand Prairie, TX 75050

Any comments from Spokesman:
Through a translator, Mr. Contreras stated he wanted to the patio cover to have shade between the house and swimming
pool for his family. He is asking for the large size because if he makes it smaller the patio cover will block the windows.

Any questions from Board:

The following persons spoke in favor of the application:

The following persons noted their support for the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in favor of the case:
N/A

The following persons noted their opposition to the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in opposition to the case:
N/A

The applicant did or did not speak in rebuttal.
The public hearing was closed.

After consideration of the evidence, the Board discussed the evidence and the documentation on the record.

The Board makes the following findings, indicated by a check or x in the blank next to the finding:

X Proper notification was done in accordance with the statutes and ordinances.

The decision of the City building or administrative official to deny the permit or construction was in error, and
the permit should be granted.

A variance, if granted, is not contrary to the public interest, and, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement
of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship, and the granting of the variance would be in the spirit of the
ordinances and substantial justice would be done.



X The variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent property
in the same district.

X The variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare of the public.

X The variance or exception will not be contrary to public interest.

X The variance or exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized
for the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

X The variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of the Unified Development Code and
all other ordinances of the City.

X The variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located the property for
which the variance is sought.

X The variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning regulations
established for the district in which the property is located,;

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to unique
circumstances existing on the property, including, but not limited to, area, shape or slope, and the unique circumstances
were not created by the owner of the property, and are not merely financial, and are not due to or the result of general
conditions in the district in which the property is located.

The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Any additional findings:

Motion to close to the public hearing by Tracy Owens
2" the Motion by Stacy White

Motion was Approved and Public Hearing was closed

Motion to Approve Case Tracy Owens
2" the Motion Timothy Ibidapo

Motion was Approved/Denied 8 yaysto 0 Nays

Members that objected ~ N/A

3. CASE NUMBER BA190804 (Council District 6). —Requesting a 46 square foot variance from the 450

square foot limitation to allow for a 496 square foot accessory structure and a special exception for siding



material. Located at 1417 Nadine Ln, legally described as Lot 100, Florence Hill 2, City of Grand Prairie,
Dallas County, Texas zoned as “PD-84” Planned Development 84 District

Applicant / Spokesperson: Johnny Romero
Address: 1417 Nadine Ln
Grand Prairie, TX 75052

Any comments from Spokesman:
Mr. Romero would like the new storage because the old one is falling apart. The old one will be taken down to make
room for the new. The entrance for the new shed will be on the side

Any questions from Board:

The following persons spoke in favor of the application:

The following persons noted their support for the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in favor of the case:
N/A

The following persons noted their opposition to the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in opposition to the case:
N/A

The applicant did or did not speak in rebuttal.
The public hearing was closed.

After consideration of the evidence, the Board discussed the evidence and the documentation on the record.

The Board makes the following findings, indicated by a check or x in the blank next to the finding:

X Proper notification was done in accordance with the statutes and ordinances.

The decision of the City building or administrative official to deny the permit or construction was in etror, and
the permit should be granted.

A variance, if granted, is not contrary to the public interest, and, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement
of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship, and the granting of the variance would be in the spirit of the
ordinances and substantial justice would be done.

X The variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent property
in the same district.



X The variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare of the public.

_ X The variance or exception will not be contrary to public interest.

X  The variance or exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized
for the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

X The variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of the Unified Development Code and
all other ordinances of the City.

X The variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located the property for
which the variance is sought.

X The variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning regulations
established for the district in which the property is located;

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to unique
circumstances existing on the property, including, but not limited to, area, shape or slope, and the unique circumstances
were not created by the owner of the property, and are not merely financial, and are not due to or the result of general
conditions in the district in which the property is located.

The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Any additional findings:

Motion to close to the public hearing by Tracy Owens
2"¢ the Motion by Heather Mazac

Motion was Approved and Public Hearing was closed

Motion to Approve Case by Tracy Owens
2" the Motion Melinda Rodgers

Motion was Approved/Denied 8 yays to__ 0 Nays

4. CASE NUMBER BA190805 (Council District 4). —Requesting a special exception for a rear yard carport,
located at 5220 Brewster Ct, legally described as Lot 52, Block 6, Lake Parks West Addition, City of Grand

Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas zoned as “PD-267” Planned Development 267 District

Applicant / Spokesperson: Hassan Alajbir
Address: 5220 Brewster Ct
Grand Prairie, TX 75052




Any comments from Spokesman:
Mr. Alajbir would like to the carport to shade and protect his vehicles. He did already apply for a permit that was issued
in error.

Any questions from Board:

The following persons spoke in favor of the application:

The following persons noted their support for the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in favor of the case:
N/A

The following persons noted their opposition to the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in opposition to the case:
N/A

The applicant did or did not speak in rebuttal.
The public hearing was closed.

After consideration of the evidence, the Board discussed the evidence and the documentation on the record.

The Board makes the following findings, indicated by a check or x in the blank next to the finding:

X Proper notification was done in accordance with the statutes and ordinances.

The decision of the City building or administrative official to deny the permit or construction was in error, and
the permit should be granted.

A variance, if granted, is not contrary to the public interest, and, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement
of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship, and the granting of the variance would be in the spirit of the
ordinances and substantial justice would be done.

X __ The variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent property
in the same district.

X The variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare of the public.

_ X The variance or exception will not be contrary to public interest.



X The variance or exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized
for the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

_ X The variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of the Unified Development Code and
all other ordinances of the City.

X The variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located the property for
which the variance is sought.

X The variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning regulations
established for the district in which the property is located,;

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to unique
circumstances existing on the property, including, but not limited to, area, shape or slope, and the unique circumstances
were not created by the owner of the property, and are not merely financial, and are not due to or the result of general
conditions in the district in which the property is located.

The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Any additional findings:

Motion to close to the public hearing by Tracy Owens
2" the Motion by Timothy Ibidapo

Motion was Approved and Public Hearing was closed

Motion to Approve Case by Tracy Owens
2™ the Motion Melinda Rodgers

Motion was Approved/Denied 8 vyays to_ 0 Nays

5. CASE NUMBER BA190807 (Council District 2). —

1. Requesting a 13 foot rear yard setback variance from the required 20 feet to allow for an
accessory structure 7 feet from the rear property line

2. A 72 square foot variance from the 120 square foot size limitation outlined by “PD 201” to
allow for a 192 square foot accessory structure



3. A 3 foot height variance form the 10 foot height limitation outline by “PD 201" to allow for a
13 foot tall accessory structure

Located at 310 Nunez Dr, legally described as W 1/2 Lot 2, Block L, Sheffield Village Phase 4
Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas “PD-201" Planned Development 201 District

Applicant / Spokesperson: _ Pedro Guzman Rios
Address: _310 Nunez
Grand Prairie, TX 75051

Any comments from Spokesman:
Applicant would like the new larger shed to place of their personal belongings in and tear down the old shed

Any questions from Board:

The following persons spoke in favor of the application:

The following persons noted their support for the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in favor of the case:
N/A

The following persons noted their opposition to the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in opposition to the case:
N/A

The applicant did or did not speak in rebuttal.
The public hearing was closed.

After consideration of the evidence, the Board discussed the evidence and the documentation on the record.

The Board makes the following findings, indicated by a check or x in the blank next to the finding:

X Proper notification was done in accordance with the statutes and ordinances.

The decision of the City building or administrative official to deny the permit or construction was in error, and
the permit should be granted.

A variance, if granted, is not contrary to the public interest, and, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement
of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship, and the granting of the variance would be in the spirit of the
ordinances and substantial justice would be done.

_X__ The variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent property



in the same district.

X The variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare of the public.

X The variance or exception will not be contrary to public interest.

X The variance or exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized
for the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

X The variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of the Unified Development Code and
all other ordinances of the City.

X The variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located the property for
which the variance is sought.

X The variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning regulations
established for the district in which the property is located;

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to unique
circumstances existing on the property, including, but not limited to, area, shape or slope, and the unique circumstances
were not created by the owner of the property, and are not merely financial, and are not due to or the result of general
conditions in the district in which the property is located.

The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Any additional findings:

Motion to close to the public hearing by Tracy Owens
2" the Motion by Melinda Rodgers

Motion was Approved and Public Hearing was closed

Motion to Approve Case by Tracy Owens
2" the Motion Melinda Rodgers

Motion was Approved/Denied 8 vyays to_ 0 Nays
Members that objected

6. CASE NUMBER BA1908 neil District 3). —Requesting a 136 foot square foot variance from the
120 square foot maximum outlined by “PD-120" to allow for a 256 square foot accessory structure, located at



501 Stonehenge Drive, legally described as Lot 44, Block A, Park Square 2 Rep Addition, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas zoned as “PD-120" Planned Development 120 District

Applicant / Spokesperson: Alba Escobar
Address: 501 Stonehenge
Grand Prairie, TX 75052

Any comments from Spokesman:
The applicant would like the accessory structure to create more space in the garage

Any questions from Board:

The following persons spoke in favor of the application:

The following persons noted their support for the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in favor of the case:
N/A

The following persons noted their opposition to the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in opposition to the case:
N/A

The applicant did or did not speak in rebuttal.
The public hearing was closed.

After consideration of the evidence, the Board discussed the evidence and the documentation on the record.

The Board makes the following findings, indicated by a check or x in the blank next to the finding:

X Proper notification was done in accordance with the statutes and ordinances.

The decision of the City building or administrative official to deny the permit or construction was in error, and
the permit should be granted.

A variance, if granted, is not contrary to the public interest, and, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement
of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship, and the granting of the variance would be in the spirit of the
ordinances and substantial justice would be done.

X The variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent property
in the same district.

X The variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare of the public.



X The variance or exception will not be contrary to public interest.

X The variance or exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized
for the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

X The variance or exception will be in harﬁlony with the spirit and purpose of the Unified Development Code and
all other ordinances of the City.

X The variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located the property for
which the variance is sought.

X The variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning regulations
established for the district in which the property is located;

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to unique
circumstances existing on the property, including, but not limited to, area, shape or slope, and the unique circumstances
were not created by the owner of the property, and are not merely financial, and are not due to or the result of general
conditions in the district in which the property is located.

The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Any additional findings:

Motion to close to the public hearing by Tracy Owens
2™ the Motion by Melinda Rodgers

Motion was Approved and Public Hearing was closed

Motion to Approve Case followed by Tracy Owens
2™ the Motion Melinda Rodgers

Motion was Approved/Denied 8  yays to 0 Nays

7. CASE NUMBER BA190810 (Council District 4). -Requesting a 10 foot rear yard setback variance from the
30foot build line to allow for the porch 20 feet from the rear property line, located 2839 Ivy Glen Dr, legally

described as Lot 49, Block 1, Ivy Glen Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas zoned as “PD-
278”- Planned Development 278 District

Applicant / Spokesperson: Collin Jerrell (contractor)
Address: 2839 Ivy Glen
Grand Prairie, TX 75052




Any comments from Spokesman:
The homeowners would like to have a large space to enjoy the front of the house. This will be their forever home and

would like to make it everything they want
Any questions from Board:

The following persons spoke in favor of the application:

The following persons noted their support for the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in favor of the case:
N/A

The following persons noted their opposition to the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in opposition to the case:
N/A

The applicant did or did not speak in rebuttal.
The public hearing was closed.

After consideration of the evidence, the Board discussed the evidence and the documentation on the record.

The Board makes the following findings, indicated by a check or x in the blank next to the finding:

X Proper notification was done in accordance with the statutes and ordinances.

The decision of the City building or administrative official to deny the permit or construction was in error, and
the permit should be granted.

A variance, if granted, is not contrary to the public interest, and, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement
of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship, and the granting of the variance would be in the spirit of the
ordinances and substantial justice would be done.

X The variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent property
in the same district.

X The variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare of the public.

X The variance or exception will not be contrary to public interest.



X The variance or exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized
for the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

X The variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of the Unified Development Code and
all other ordinances of the City.

X The variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located the property for
which the variance is sought.

X The variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning regulations
established for the district in which the property is located;

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to unique
circumstances existing on the property, including, but not limited to, area, shape or slope, and the unique circumstances
were not created by the owner of the property, and are not merely financial, and are not due to or the result of general
conditions in the district in which the property is located.

The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Any additional findings:

Motion to close to the public hearing by Tracy Owens
2"l the Motion by Stacy White

Motion was Approved and Public Hearing was closed

Motion to Approve Case by Tracy Owens
2" the Motion Timothy Ibidapo

Motion was Approved/Denied 8 yays to_ 0 Nays
Members that objected
Any conditions:

8. CASE NUMBER BA190812 (Council District 3). —Requesting a special exception for two corrugated metal
carports, located 510 S Holiday Dr, legally described as Lot 21, Block 16, Park Valley 2, City of Grand

Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas zoned as “SF-3"- Single Family 3

Applicant / Spokesperson: Hillario Gallegos
Address: 510 S Holiday
Grand Prairie, TX 75050

Any comments from Spokesman:
The homeowners would like to have 2 carports to protect the families vehicles

Any questions from Board:
Stacy White asked if carports are prevalent in the area. The answer is no
Timothy Ibidapo asked if there is a set number of saturation of carports. The staff answered that no there is not. Each



request is on a case by case scenario but there was one other permitted carport in the area

Tracy Owens voiced concern about the request for 2 carports since this is not characteristic of the neighborhood

Clayton Hutchins asked what the material would be? Staff answered it would be corregated metal and there was one
permitted with that type of material

Stacy White asked if staff was confident that the applicant would have a better chance applying as 2 separate cases?
Staff is unsure because they have never received a case for 2 carports and this is not characterististic of the neighborhood

The following persons spoke in favor of the application:

Abelina Martinez of 514 S Holiday spoke in favor. She is not concerned about the metal taking away from the
appearance of the neighborhood. She just wants to make sure the drainage would flow away from her property
Kim Solis of 518 S Holiday Dr spoke in favor. The carports would be far enough from the street where the trees would
hide visibility and understands the need for protection of your vehicles

The following persons noted their support for the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in favor of the case:
N/A

The following persons noted their opposition to the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in opposition to the case:
N/A

The applicant did or did not speak in rebuttal.
The public hearing was closed.

After consideration of the evidence, the Board discussed the evidence and the documentation on the record.

The Board makes the following findings, indicated by a check or x in the blank next to the finding:

X Proper notification was done in accordance with the statutes and ordinances.

The decision of the City building or administrative official to deny the permit or construction was in error, and
the permit should be granted.

A variance, if granted, is not contrary to the public interest, and, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement
of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship, and the granting of the variance would be in the spirit of the
ordinances and substantial justice would be done.

X The variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent property
in the same district.

X The variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare of the public.

X The variance or exception will not be contrary to public interest.



X The variance or exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized
for the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

X__ The variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of the Unified Development Code and
all other ordinances of the City.

X The variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located the property for
which the variance is sought.

X The variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning regulations
established for the district in which the property is located;

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to unique
circumstances existing on the property, including, but not limited to, area, shape or slope, and the unique circumstances
were not created by the owner of the property, and are not merely financial, and are not due to or the result of general
conditions in the district in which the property is located.

The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Any additional findings:

Motion to close to the public hearing by Tracy Owens
2" the Motion by Melinda Rodger

Motion was Approved and Public Hearing was closed

Motion to Approve Case by Tracy Owens
2™ the Motion Debbie Hubacek

Motion was Approved/Denied 5 yays to 3 Nays
Members that objected Clayton Hutchins, Timothy Ibidapo, Melinda Rodgers

Motion to approve Carport on side by Timothy Ibidapo
2" the Motion Stacy White

Motion was Approved/Denied 8 yays to 0 Nays
Members that objected

9. CASE iR B 11 (Council Distri =

1. Requesting a 62 square foot variance from the 750 square foot



2. A 4 foot rear yard setback variance from the required 10 feet, to allow for a detached garage and
accessory structure 6 feet from the rear property line

3. A special exception for the use of corrugated metal as a building material

Located 706 E Springdale, legally described as Lot 5, Block 4, Lake Park Village 1 Addition, City of
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas zoned as “SF-3"- Single Family Three District

Applicant / Spokesperson: Juan Moreno (spokeperson- applicant’s son)
Address: 706 E Springdale
Grand Prairie, TX 75052

Any comments from Spokesman:

The structure was built unknown to his dad without a permit. The contractor said he did but now knows that he did not.
The applicant would like to keep the structure to work on his personal cars and is willing to fix the issues by maybe
taking down the walls and turning it into a carport

Any questions from Board:

Tracy Owens asked if the structure was existing. Staff answered that yes it is

Debbie Hubacek asked how long the structure has been there? The structure has been there for about a year. The reason
it came into question was a complaint to Code Enforcement that garage was being used as a business

An alternative was posed to the applicant of having the garage no larger than 750 square feet and masonry or same as the
house

The following persons spoke in favor of the application:

The following persons noted their support for the application:
N/A

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in favor of the case:
N/A

The following persons noted their opposition to the application:
Jena Perkins of 809 NW 9" St owns the property behind the applicant (601 Trinidad)and is opposed to it because it is not
in compliance and fear of the affects to her property

The following evidence was presented to the Board by those in opposition to the case:
N/A

The applicant did or did not speak in rebuttal.
The public hearing was closed.

After consideration of the evidence, the Board discussed the evidence and the documentation on the record.

The Board makes the following findings, indicated by a check or x in the blank next to the finding:

X Proper notification was done in accordance with the statutes and ordinances.

The decision of the City building or administrative official to deny the permit or construction was in error, and
the permit should be granted.



A variance, if granted, is not contrary to the public interest, and, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement
of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship, and the granting of the variance would be in the spirit of the
ordinances and substantial justice would be done.

X The variance or exception will not substantially or permanently injure the appropriate use of adjacent property
in the same district.

X The variance or exception will not adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare of the public.

X The variance or exception will not be confrary to public interest.

X The variance or exception will not authorize the operation of a use other than those uses specifically authorized
for the district in which the property for which the variance is sought is located.

X The variance or exception will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of the Unified Development Code and
all other ordinances of the City.

X The variance or exception will not alter the essential character of the district in which is located the property for
which the variance is sought.

X The variance or exception will not substantially weaken the general purposes of the zoning regulations
established for the district in which the property is located;

The plight of the owner of the property for which the variance or exception is sought is due to unique
circumstances existing on the property, including, but not limited to, area, shape or slope, and the unique circumstances
were not created by the owner of the property, and are not merely financial, and are not due to or the result of general
conditions in the district in which the property is located.

The variance or exception is not a self-created hardship.

Any additional findings:
Motion to close to the public hearing by Tracy Owens

2™ the Motion by Stacy White

Motion was Approved and Public Hearing was closed

Motion to Approve Case by Tracy Owens
2™ the Motion Heather Mazac

Motion was Approved/Denied 1  yays to_ 7 Nays



Members that objected Barry Sandacz, Debbie Hubacek, Clayton Hutchins, Melinda Rodgers, Tracy Owens, Heather
Mazac, Stacy White

Motion to reopen the hearing for questions: Tracy Owens

2" the Motion by Stacy White

The board asked if all the cars were being worked on were personal cars? Did the applicant have the title? The applicant

answered yes that he did
Tracy Owens asked if they would be willing to remove 40% for the structure and remain with a roof over the vehicles

The applicant agreed

Motion to close to the public hearing by Heather Mazac
2" the Motion by Stacy White

Motion to Approve 4 fi rear yard setback but require the garage to be a maximum of 750 sq ft with approved masonry
by Heather Mazac
2" the Motion by Tracy Owens

Motion was Approved/Denied 5  yays to 3 Nays
Members that objected Clayton Hutchins, Melinda Rodgers, Timothy Ibidapo

Motion to Deny Case by Melinda Rodgers
2" the Motion by Timothy Ibidapo

Motion was Approved/Denied 7  yays to | Nays
Members that objected Heather Mazac

CITIZENS COMMENT:

Matt Jupy of 5224 Brewster was told to come to the meeting to dispute a fee from his HOA. Barry Sandacz
recommended talking to his HOA board for that information

NEW BUSINESS:

City Attorney Mark Dempsey stated that Texas House requires that Council approve of any
new or changes to ZBA rules. Please look through the rules to verify if any need to be updated.
The last update was done in 2005.

ADJOURNMENT: 8:22 pm



